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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of TCI-CONCOR MULTIMODAL SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of TCI-CONCOR MULTIMODAL
SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
(*Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2025, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the standalone financial statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that. in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key { gtters to be communicated in our report.
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| Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response
Revenue recognition and Our audit approach include but were not limited to the
measurement including related following:
cost of rendering of services * Testing the design and operating effectiveness of the
involve critical judgments by internal controls associated with contracts with
management including customers

assessment of when the control of | o Testing the information technology systems related to
goods or services are being consignment notes, trip data and billing

trar.lsferre‘d, identifying large * Analyzing contracts with customers/vendors from
variety of complex performance selected samples

obllgathns and determlpmg if * Analyzing invoices with customers/vendors from
such obligations are satisfied over selected samples

a period of time.

* Reviewing the logic designed in preparation of
X consignment notes, bill registers and the time taken for
Refer Note No. 14 to financial concluding the performance obligation
Statements S

Testing of the approval mechanism, access and change
controls associated with the tariff/rate masters

Reviewing the report of Internal Auditors

* Performance of analytical procedures for
reasonableness of the estimates

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report
including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s
Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have ing to report in this regard.
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Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

et s T PPN

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of'adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates

that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records

b

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considerc  material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional Judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circums er section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
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responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of mana

adequate internal financial controls

gement’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that

may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including

the disclosures, and whrther the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the st
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisi
statements may be influenced.

We consider quantitative materiality and
evaluating the results of our work; and
statements.

We communicate with those char
timing of the audit and significan
identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

andalone financial statements that, individually or in
ons of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial

qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial

ged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
taudit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit o1 the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances. we determine that a matter should not be

communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained al] the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 3 1, 2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, Company has not
paid any remuneration to its Directors for the Financial Year 2024-25.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us :

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person or entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding. whether
recorded in writing or otherwise. that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries: —
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(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material
either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including
foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

L T T T TS T s,

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

V. (a) The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid by the Company during the
year is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

(b) The Board of Directors of the Company have proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the
approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The amount of dividend proposed is in
accordance with section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

Vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company, in respect of financial year
commencing on 1 April 2023, has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule | I(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,

2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the
financial year ended March 31, 2025.

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a Statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
For G C Daga & Co.
Chartered Accountants
~ FirmRegistration No. 000668S

Pawan mlfar Baid

Partner NTEN .
Membership No. 404885 ==X

» ) "'..‘

Place: Gurugram
Date: 01/05/2025
UDIN: 25404855BMG Y AF5541
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Annexure-A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our

report to the members of TC1-CONCOR MULTIMODAL SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITE
date)

D of even

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financi

al Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”),

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting of TCI-CONCOR MULTIMODAL
SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company™) as of March, 31% 2025 in conjunction with our audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Board of Directors of the Com

ing adherence to respective company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets. the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of

the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due

to fraud or error. GAS
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
to future periods are subject to (he risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 3 I, 2025, based on the criteria of
internal financial control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For G C DAGA & Co.
artered Accountants
Firn) Registration No. 000668S

“JﬂMDQM
Place: Gurugram Pawan KUmaf Baid
Date: 01/05/2025 Partner 7
UDIN: 25404855BMGY AF5541 Membership No. 404855 >~
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Annexure-B to the Independent Auditor’s Report
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our

report to the members of TCI-CONCOR MULTIMODAL SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED of even
date)

(i) In respect of the company’s fixed assets:

(a) (i) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property Plant and Equipment.
(i) The Company does not have intangible assets.

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which fixed assets are
d in a phased manner over a period of one year. In accordance with this programme, all the fixed assets
were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, this

periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets.

(¢)  The Company does not have immovable property.

(d)  As per information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued its Property Plant and
Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or not having any intangible assets during the year.

(e)  According to the informution and explanations given to us Company does not hold any Benami property
under the “Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and Rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) The Company is a service providing Company; primarily rendering Multimodal Logistics services.
Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. Thus, paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, it has availed working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, from banks or
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets; The quarterly returns or statements which was filed
by the company with banks or financial institutions are as per the books of the company.

(iii)  The Company has not made investments, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, Firm, Limited Liability Partnership or any
other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013(hereinafter called
the Act).

Accordingly, Para 3(iii) (a), (b), (¢). (d). (e) and () of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

D Lo
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(iv)  As per information and explanations given to us and on the basis of records examined by us, the Company
has not given any loan or made any investment or given any guarantee or provided any security in connection with
a loan to any other body corporate or person within the meaning of Section 185 and 186 of the Act and hence,
Para 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

(vi)  The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the
Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company.

(vii)  (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employee state insurance, income tax. sales tax, service tax, goods and service tax,
duty of customs, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year by
the Company with the appropriate authorities and no statutory dues were in arrear as at March 31 , 2025 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material dues of income tax, sales
tax, service tax, goods and service tax, value added tax and duty of customs which have not been deposited with
the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

(viii)  As per information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any transaction which was
not recorded in the books of accounts and have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(ix)  The Company has not made any default in repayment of loans or borrowings or payment of interest
thereon taken from the banks and lenders
No borrowing was made from the financial institution, Government or debenture holders.

Accordingly, Para 3(ix) (a), (b), (¢). (d), () and (f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
(x) (a) As per information and explanations given to us, the Company has applied the term loans for the purposes
for which those are raised. Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer

(including debt instruments).

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year
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(xi) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud has been noticed or
reported during the financial year, which has been done by the company or on the company by its officers or
employees.

Accordingly, Para 3(xi) (a), (b)and (c)of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xii)  The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence Para 3 (xii) (a), (b), and (c) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xiii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of Companies
Act, 2013 and all the details of such transactions have been disclosed in Financial Statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) The company has an Internal Audit System commensurate with the size and nature of its business.
(b) The Reports of the Internal Auditors for the Financial Year 2024-25 were considered by us.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
with them. Thus, Para 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Accordingly, Para 3(xvi) (a), (b), (c) and (d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

(xvii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records

of the Company has not incurred any cash losses in Financial Year 2024-25 and in the preceding Financial Year
2023-24.

(xviii)  There has not been any resignation of the Statutory Auditors during the year.

(xix)  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board
of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
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when they fall due.

e

(xx) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records. The Company was not dealing in any project which was undertaken for CSR activity and therefore
transferred of unspent amount to a fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act within a period of six

month of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of
the said Act.

(b) There is no unspent amount under sub-section-5 of the section 135 of the Company Act. For details
refer note no. 20.14 of the financial statements.

(xxi) This is not a holding company; hence this clause is not applicable.

For G C DAGA & Co.
Chartered Accountants

i"OP\bAE’\‘
a0
Place: Gurugram Pawan Kui Z\_FRN: 00
Date: 01/05/2025 Partner N\ Oroa

UDIN: 25404855BMGY AF5541 Membership No. 404855 ="
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of TCI-CONCOR MULTIMODAL SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of TCI-CONCOR MULTIMODAL
SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
(“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at

March 31, 2025, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the standalone financial statements.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be dit matters to be communicated in our report.

: N
A
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Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response

Revenue recognition and Our audit approach include but were not limited to the
measurement including related following:

cost of rendering of services e Testing the design and operating effectiveness of the
involve critical judgments by internal controls associated with contracts with
management including customers

assessment of when the control of | ¢ Testing the information technology systems related to
goods or services are being consignment notes, trip data and billing

transferred, identifying large e Analyzing contracts with customers/vendors from
variety of complex performance selected samples

obligations and determining if e Analyzing invoices with customers/vendors from

such obligations are satisfied over

) ! selected samples
a period of time.

e Reviewing the logic designed in preparation of
consignment notes, bill registers and the time taken for
concluding the performance obligation

e Testing of the approval mechanism, access and change
controls associated with the tariff/rate masters
Reviewing the report of Internal Auditors

e Performance of analytical procedures for
reasonableness of the estimates

Refer Note No. 14 to financial
statements

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report
including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s
Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone

financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates

that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional Jjudgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstanc 1143
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responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including

the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced.

We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

ions which to the best of our knowledge and

/ORCA ¢
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In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 3 1, 2025 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and

the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in *“Annexure A”. Our report

g)

expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, Company has not
paid any remuneration to its Directors for the Financial Year 2024-25.

h)

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us :

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person or entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding. whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the

Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material
either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including
foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v. (a) The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid by the Company during the
year is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

(b) The Board of Directors of the Company have proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the
approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The amount of dividend proposed is in
accordance with section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

Vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company, in respect of financial year
commencing on 1 April 2023, has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 1 1(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,

2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the
financial year ended March 31, 2025.

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For G C Daga & Co.

Place: Gurugram Pawan Kumar/Baid
Date: 01/05/2025 Partner
UDIN: 25404855BMGYAF5541 Membership No. 404855
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Annexure-A to the Independent Auditor’s Report
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our

report to the members of TCI-CONCOR MULTIMODAL SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED of even
date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”).

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting of TCI-CONCOR MULTIMODAL
SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company®) as of March, 31% 2025 in conjunction with our audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information. as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
Jjudgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. RGA
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the criteria of
internal financial control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For G C DAGA & Co.
_Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Noﬁ006688 S

L] Y
- B

J :f ~—:_\f.\,\; ‘\\
~ A _|\O\
Place: Gurugram Pawdn CARATA _Ll /m )
Date: 01/05/2025 Partner \Z\ —T«Wm%
UDIN: 25404855BMGY AF5541 Membership No. 404855 dAec0 S
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Annexure-B to the Independent Auditor’s Report
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our

report to the members of TCI-CONCOR MULTIMODAL SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED of even
date)

(i) In respect of the company’s fixed assets:

(a) (i) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property Plant and Equipment.
(i) The Company does not have intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which fixed assets are
verified in a phased manner over a period of one year. In accordance with this programme, all the fixed assets
were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, this
periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets.

(¢)  The Company does not have immovable property.

(d)  As per information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued its Property Plant and
Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or not having any intangible assets during the year.

(¢)  According to the information and explanations given to us Company does not hold any Benami property
under the “Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and Rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The Company is a service providing Company: primarily rendering Multimodal Logistics services.
Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. Thus. paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, it has availed working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, from banks or
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets; The quarterly returns or statements which was filed
by the company with banks or financial institutions are as per the books of the company.

(iii) ~ The Company has not made investments, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, Firm, Limited Liability Partnership or any

other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013(hereinafter called
the Act).

Accordingly, Para 3(iii) (a), (b), (c), (d). (¢) and (f) of the Or.

not applicable to the Company.

L 4
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(iv)  As per information and explanations given to us and on the basis of records examined by us, the Company
has not given any loan or made any investment or given any guarantee or provided any security in connection with
a loan to any other body corporate or person within the meaning of Section 185 and 186 of the Act and hence,
Para 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public. |
(vi)  The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the
Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory

dues including provident fund, employee state insurance. income tax, sales tax, service tax, goods and service tax,

duty of customs, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year by

the Company with the appropriate authorities and no statutory dues were in arrear as at March 31, 2025 for a

period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material dues of income tax, sales
tax, service tax, goods and service tax, value added tax and duty of customs which have not been deposited with
the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

(viii) ~ As per information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any transaction which was
not recorded in the books of accounts and have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(ix) ~ The Company has not made any default in repayment of loans or borrowings or payment of interest
thereon taken from the banks and lenders

No borrowing was made from the financial institution, Government or debenture holders.

Accordingly, Para 3(ix) (a), (b), (¢), (d), (e) and (f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
() (a) As per information and explanations given to us, the Company has applied the term loans for the purposes
for which those are raised. Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer

(including debt instruments).

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the
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(xi) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud has been noticed or
reported during the financial year, which has been done by the company or on the company by its officers or
employees.

Accordingly, Para 3(xi) (a), (b)and (c)of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xii) ~ The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence Para 3 (xii) (a), (b), and (c) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the  records
of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of Companies
Act, 2013 and all the details of such transactions have been disclosed in Financial Statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) The company has an Internal Audit System commensurate with the size and nature of its business.
(b) The Reports of the Internal Auditors for the Financial Year 2024-25 were considered by us.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the  records
of the Company, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
with them. Thus, Para 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Accordingly, Para 3(xvi) (a), (b), (c) and (d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

(xvii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company has not incurred any cash losses in Financial Year 2024-25 and in the preceding Financial Year
2023-24.

(xviii) There has not been any resignation of the Statutory Auditors during the year.

(xix) ~ On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board |
of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,

nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of

the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance

sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that

this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on

the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give e arantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
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falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and
when they fall due.

(xx) (a) Acéording to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records. The Company was not dealing in any project which was undertaken for CSR activity and therefore
transferred of unspent amount to a fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act within a period of six

month of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of
the said Act.

(b) There is no unspent amount under sub-section-5 of the section 135 of the Company Act. For details
refer note no. 20.14 of the financial statements.

(xxi) This is not a holding company; hence this clause is not applicable.

For G C DAGA & Co.
: Chartered Accountants

Place: Gurugram Pawan Kumjr Baid | o excomrtlly
Date: 01/05/2025 Partner O/

\ K\

UDIN: 25404855BMGY AF5541 Membership No. 404855 SSd A

.-



mailto:pwnbaid@gmail.com

B ¥ TCI-CONCOR MULTIMODAL SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN No: U60231DL2007PTC216625)

BALANCE SHEET
U X figures in lacs
As at
Particulars Note No. Asal 2 March 31, 2024
March 31, 2025 (Audited) (Audited)
Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment
Property, Plant And Equipment 2 1,001.94 869.59
Intangible Assets B B
Financial Assets
Other Non-Current Financial Assets -
Other Non-Current Assets 3 - 24.78
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 10 -
Current Assets
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables 3(a) 6,776.27 5,612.03
Cash And Cash Equivalents q 1.38 0.01
Other Bank Balances -
Loans and Advance 6(a) 4.56 2.89
Other Financial Assets 5 1,382.11 410.05
Current Tax Assets (Net) 6 413.83 302.55
Other Current Assets 7 362.39 409.60
Total 9,942.48 7,631.50
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Equity Share Capital 8(a) 700.00 700.00
Other Equity 8(b) 3,099.64 2,477.88
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 9 669.63 685.78
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 10 52.30 31.07
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Short Term Borrowings 11 1,446.67 2,213.39
Trade Payables 12 3,735.36 1,330.61
Provisions 207.54 163.38
Other Current Liabilities 13 31.34 29.39
Total 9,942.48 7,631.50
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial 1to 20

statements as per our report of even date attached

For G.C. Daga & Company
Chartered Accountants
gistration No.000668S

~ -
MQ.A [ ‘] =
Pawan Kumar B
Partner o —v»j’l‘-,
Membership No.: 404855 R

Date:01/05/2025
Place: Gurugram

/

OR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

L

Wparied

al Jain
airman
107372698

V’*’W,

mesh K. Behl
Dy. CFO

#

//M‘({W/

Safali Gupta
Company Secretary

Vineet Agarwal
Vice Chairman
DIN:00380300

AsspeA
Ajit Singh
CEO



TCI-CONCOR MULTIMODAL SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN No: U60231DL2007PTC216625)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE

X figures in lacs

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Audited) (Audited)

Income
Revenue From Operations 14 45,553.06 34,511.47
Other Income 15 10.36 48.10
Total Income (1) 45,563.42 34,559.57
Expenses
Operating expenses 16 43,008.10 32,436.38
Employee benefits expense 17 786.15 694.94
Finance expenses 18 213.34 120.25
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 2 159.93 102.03
Other expenses 19 405.54 374.37
Total Expenses (1) 44,573.06 33,727.97
Profit Before Tax (llI=1 - 1) 990.36 831.60
Tax Expense: (IV)

Current tax 228.37 189.58

Deferred tax charge 10 21.23 19.60
Profit For The Period (V=III - IV) 740.76 622.42
Other Comprehensive Income (VI)
Items That Will Not Be Reclassified subsequentely to Profit Or Loss

()Remeasurement loss/gain on employee defined Benefit plan

(1) Income Tax Relating To Items That Will Not Be Reclassified To Profit Or Loss

Total Other Comprehensive Income (1+11) -
Total Comprehensive Income For The Period (V+VI) 740.76 622.42
Earnings per equity Share( Face value of Rs.10 each)

Basic 10.58 8.89

Diluted 10.58 8.89
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements as per our report of even date attached 1to 20

For G.C. Daga & Company
Chartered Accountants
gistratiog No.000668S

Pawan Kumar Haid
Partner e
Membership No.: 404855 RN: 00

Date: 01 May 2025
Place: Gurugram

aWL};

Umesh K. Behl
Dy. CFO

Safali Gupta
Company Secretary

Vineet Agagwal

Vice Chairman
DIN:00380300

W postee

Ajit Singh
CEO



) TCI-CONCOR MULTIMODAL SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN No: U60231DL2007PTC216625)
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE

X figures in lacs

Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2025

Year Ended March 31, 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before Tax 990.36 831.60
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation 159.93 102.03
Loss/(Gain) on Transfer of Fixed Assets - 0.58
Interest Income (10.31) (21.82)
Loss/(Gain) on Foreign exchange - 2
Interest Expenses 213.34 120.25
362.96 201.04

Operating profit before Working Capital changes 1,353.32 1,032.64
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade receivable (1,164.24) (2,083.18)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other current financial assets (926.53) (407.98)
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payable 2,404.75 107.31
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current financial liabilities 46.11 360.09 78.66 (2,305.19)
Cash generated from Operating Activities 1,713.41 (1,272.55)
Less: (Taxes Paid )/Refund(Net of provision) (339.65 72.98)
Net cash provided by Operating Activities 1,373.76 (1,345.53)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets (292.28) (597.67)
Advance for purchase of fixed assets 24.78 (24.78)
Sale/Transfer of Fixed Assets - 0.08
Loss on Foreign exchange S -
Interest Received/Misc. income 10.31 21.82
Net cash provided from Investing Activities (257.19) (600.55)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loan proceeds 276.00 715.53
Repayment of loan (220.49) (182.37)
Interest Paid (on Term Loan ) (91.32) (52.10)
Interest Paid on Short-term borrowings (122.02) (68.15)
Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Borrowings (838.37) 1,637.99
Payment of final Dividend (119.00) (105.00)
Dividend tax - -
Net cash used in Financing Activities (1,115.20) 1,945.90
Net (Decrease)/ Increase In Cash and Cash Equivalents During the Year 1.37 !0.18!
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the period 0.01 0.19
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the Period 1.38 0.01
Note :
1. The Cash and Cash equivalents comprise of the followings as Per Note No.4

. Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars

MARCH 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash In Hand 1.38 0.01
Bank Balance in Current account - -
Cheques in Hand - -
1.38 0.01

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements as 1to 20
per our report of even date attached

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

For G.C. Daga & Company
Chartered Accountants
gistration No.000668S
"
JM W~

Pawan Kumar Ba|d

\C 372698
e (R ) AT
S‘aali

Membership No.: 404855 e ) [~

g /'~ Umesh K. Behl Gupta
Date: 01/05/2025 Dy. CFO Company Secretary
Place: Gurugram

ZW

Vineet Agarv:lal
Vice Chairman
DIN:00380300

AsseA
Ajit Singh
CEO



TCI-CONCOR MULTIMODAL SOLUTIONS PVT. LTD.

Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

NOTE: 1 ACCOMPANING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A.

COMPANY OVERVIEW

The Company is a subsidiary of Transport Corporation of India Ltd (TCIL) in joint venture with
Container Corporation of India Ltd (CONCOR). The principal business of the Company is to provide
Integrated Logistics Services. CONCOR has appointed the company as its business Associate. Besides,
it provides incidental services to its customers viz. over viewing loading and unloading of cargo at
train terminals, warehousing for short period, co-coordinating road transporters and transportation
both at originating station as well as destination. The amount charged to customers for these services
has been accounted as “Logistics Income”.

B. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1)

Basis of preparation of Financial Statements:

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(‘Act’). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

The financial statements are approved by the Company’s Board of Directors on 15t May, 2025

2)

3)

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the
management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments
and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period.
Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex
and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in these financial statements have been
disclosed at appropriate place. Accounting estimates could change from period to period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as
management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes
in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made
and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Recognition of Income and Expenditure:

Income and expenditure generally are recognized on accrual basis in accordance with the
applicable accounting standards and provision is made for all known losses and liabilities.
Income is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and it can be reliably measured. Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received/receivable net of rebate and taxes. The Company applies the revenue recognition
criteria to each separately identifiable component as per guidance in Ind AS 18.

The Company derives its income from three principal sources: Rail Freight Services, Road
Freight Services and other income.
7 ¥
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TCI-CONCOR MULTIMODAL SOLUTIONS PVT. LTD.
Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Rail Freight Services

Rail Freight income and associated expenses are recognised using the percentage-of-
completion method. Stage of completion is measured by reference to voyage days for each
contract. Generally, the contracts are Fixed-price, thus the associated costs can be reliably
measured.

Road Freight Services

Road Freight income and associated expenses are recognised using the percentage-of-
completion method. Stage of completion is measured by reference to voyage days for each
contract. Generally, the contracts are Fixed-price, thus the associated costs can be reliably
measured.

Others

Interest Income

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and rate applicable. For all debt instruments measured at amortised cost, interest
income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Effective 01 April 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS-115, "Revenue from Contracts with
Customers". The company has evaluated the impact on the financial statements and amount was
immaterial and insignificant.

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalized during the period of time that is necessary to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. Capitalization of borrowing costs is
suspended in the period during which the active development is delayed due to, other than
temporary, interruption. All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss as incurred

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost, less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria
are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the
intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in
statement of profit and loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the
decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the
recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method,
computed on the basis of useful lives prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.




TCI-CONCOR MULTIMODAL SOLUTIONS PVT. LTD.

Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

6)

7)

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each
balance sheet date is classified as capital advances under other non-current assets and the
cost of assets not put to use before such date are disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-progress’.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
it transfers the said asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement
when the asset is derecognized.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible
assets are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis, from the date that they are available for use. The estimated useful life of an identifiable
intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence,
demand, competition, and other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry, and
known technological advances), and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain
the expected future cash flows from the asset. Amortization methods and useful lives are
reviewed periodically including at each financial year end.

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Software product development costs are expensed
as incurred unless technical and commercial feasibility of the project is demonstrated, future
economic benefits are probable, the company has an intention and ability to complete and use
or sell the software and the costs can be measured reliably. The costs which can be capitalized
include the cost of material, direct labour, overhead costs that are directly attributable to
preparing the asset for its intended use. Research and development costs and software
development costs incurred under contractual arrangements with customers are accounted as
expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Leased assets

Company as a lessee

Finance leases

Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits
incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the lower of the fair value and
present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease term and disclosed
as leased assets. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction
of the lease liability based on the implicit rate of return. Finance charges are charged directly
against income. Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial direct costs are
capitalised.

If there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain the ownership by the end of
lease term, capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful
life of the asset or the lease term.

Operating leases
Assets acquired on leases where a significant portion of risk and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Lease rental are charged to statement
of profit and loss on straightline basis except where scheduled increase in rent compensate the
lessor for expected inflationary costs. M
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TCI-CONCOR MULTIMODAL SOLUTIONS PVT. L'TD.
Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

8)

9)

Company as a lessor

Finance leases

Leases which effectively transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits incidental
to ownership of the leased item are classified and accounted for as finance lease. Lease
income is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a straight line basis over the lease
term. Costs, including depreciation are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit
and loss. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage costs etc. are recognised
immediately in the statement of profit and loss. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in
the period in which they are earned.

Operating leases

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. The respective leased assets are
included in the balance sheet based on their nature. Rental income is recognized on straight
line basis over the lease term except where scheduled increase in rent compensates the
Company with expected inflationary costs

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Management periodically assesses, using external and internal sources, whether there is
an indication that an asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the
carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher
of the asset’s net selling price and value in use, which means the present value of future cash
flows expected to arise from the continuing use of the asset and its eventual disposal. An
impairment loss for an asset is reversed if, and only if, the reversal can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. The carrying amount of an
asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated
amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior
years.

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value and transaction cost that is attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset is also adjusted.

Subsequent measurement
I Financial assets at amortised cost - the financial asset is subsequently measured
at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

o The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
collecting contractual cash flows, and
o Contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that

are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
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TCI-CONCOR MULTIMODAL SOLUTIONS PVT. LTD.
Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and transaction cost that is
attributable to the acquisition of the financial liabilities is also adjusted. These liabilities are
classified as amortised cost.

Subsequent measurement
These liabilities include borrowings and deposits. Subsequent to initial recognition, these
liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. For trade and
other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts
approximate fair value due to this short maturity of these instruments.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged
or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

10) Impairment of financial assets

For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the
36 month ECL.

The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance
at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized is recognized as an
impairment gain or loss in Statement of Profit and Loss.

11) Provision of Current and Deferred Tax:

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax. Income tax expense is
recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates
to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other comprehensive
income. Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the amount
expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred income
tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred
tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to
taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be
recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and
liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the
substantive enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and tax losses can be utilized. Deferred income taxes are not provided on the
undistributed earnings of subsidiaries and branches where it is expected that the earnings of
the subsidiary or branch will not be distributed in the foreseeable future. The company offsets
current tax nd current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off
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TCI-CONCOR MULTIMODAL SOLUTIONS PVT. L.TD.
Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

12)

13)

14)

the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Earnings per Share (EPS)

The earnings considered in ascertaining the company's EPS comprises the Net Profit or Loss
for the period after tax and extra ordinary items. The basic EPS is computed on the basis of
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The number of shares
for computation of diluted EPS comprises of weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic EPS and also the weighted average number of equity shares
which could be issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive
potential equity shares are deemed converted as at the beginning of the year unless they are
issued at a later date. The diluted potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds
receivable assuming that the shares are actually issued at fair value. The number of shares
and potentially dilutive shares are adjusted for shares splits/reverse splits (consolidation of
shares) and bonus shares, as appropriate.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

A provision is recognized when company has a present obligation as a result of past event and
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit will be required to
settle the obligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are
determined based on best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the
Balance Sheet date. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Notes, forming
part of the financial statement. Contingent assets are neither accounted for nor disclosed.

Contingent assets are not recognized. Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other
unexpected events that give rise to the possibility of an inflow of economic benefits to the
entity. These are not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the recognition
of income that may never be realised. However, when the realization of income is virtually
certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate. A
contingent asset, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable, shall be disclosed

Post-employment, long term and short term employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

Provident Fund

Certain related entities of the Company make contribution to statutory provident fund trust
setup in accordance with the Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act,
1952. In terms of the Guidance on Ind AS - 19, the provident fund trust set up is treated as
a defined benefit plan since the Company has to meet the interest shortfall, if any.
Accordingly, the contribution paid or payable and the interest shortfall, if any, is recognised
as an expense in the period in which services are rendered by the employee.
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Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

15)

Defined benefit plans

Gratuity

Gratuity is a post-employment benefit and is in the nature of a defined benefit plan. The
liability recognised in the financial statement in respect of gratuity is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the reporting date less the fair value of plan assets, together
with adjustments for unrecognised actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The
defined benefit/obligation is calculated at or near the reporting date by an independent
actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from past experience and changes in actuarial assumptions
are credited or charged to the statement of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) in the year
in which such gains or losses are determined.

Compensated absences

Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed within
one year from the balance sheet date is recognised on the basis of undiscounted value of
estimated amount required to be paid or estimated value of benefit expected to be availed by
the employees. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be
availed more than one year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of an
actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit
method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from past experience and changes in actuarial assumptions
are charged to statement of profit and loss in the year in which such gains or losses are
determined.

Short-term employee benefits

Expense in respect of other short term benefits is recognised on the basis of the amount paid
or payable for the period during which services are rendered by the employee.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (‘INR’) which is also the functional and
presentation currency of the Company.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying to the
exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the
transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items are converted to functional currency using the closing rate.
Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost are
reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and non-monetary items
which are carried at fair value or any other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency
are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting
date, at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise. Revenue, expenses and cash flow
items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the relevant functional currencies
using the exchange rate in effect on the date of the transaction.

M
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16)

Conversion

Functional and reporting currencies of overseas subsidiaries are different from the reporting
currency of the Company. For all the foreign operations of the overseas subsidiaries, all assets
and liabilities are translated into INR using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date
and their statements of profit or loss are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. For practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate to translate
income and expense items, if the average rate approximates the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the Indirect Method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future
operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing
or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT X figures in lacs
Gross Block Depreciaton Net Block
Deductions/R Deductions/A
Additiot As at t
Particulars As at d:rln ‘:: etirements Useful Life As at As at during the | djustments M"c: 31 As at 3 1s:sMaarch
Apr1,2024 8 during the (Yrs) March 31, 2025| Apr 1, 2024 year During the ’ [ March 31, 2025 5
year 2025 2024
yvear year
Trucks & Trailors 1,137.34 - - 6 1,137.34 543.68 104.03 - 647.71 489.62 593.66
FORK LIFTS 147.47 - - 10 147.47 4.03 14.01 - 18.04 129.43 143.43
Plant & Machinery(Reach Stacker) 203.26 282.82 - 10 486.08 92.23 32.56 - 124.79 361.29 111.03
Furnitures & Fixtures 8.68 0.80 - 10 9.48 5.10 0.61 - 5.71 3.78 3.59
Office Equipment 20.28 244 - 5 22.72 15.80 1.82 - 17.62 5.10 4.48
Computer 48.43 5.23 - 3 53.66 35.03 6.86 - 41.89 11.77 13.40
Container - 0.99 - 10 0.99 - 0.04 - 0.04 0.95
Total Current year 1,565.46 292.28 - 1,857.74 695.87 159.93 - 855.80 1,001.94 869.59

~
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’ NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note-3 : Other Now Current Assets

X figures in lacs

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended March
March 31, 2025 31,2024
Capital Advances - 24.78
Less: Allowance for credit losses - -
Total - 24.78

Note - 3(a) : Trade Receivables

. Year Ended Year Ended March
Particulars
March 31, 2025 31,2024
Current
Unsecured
Considered Good 6,811.49 5,647.25
Considered Doubtful : <
(refer note: 1&2 below for ageing) 6,811.49 5,647.25
Less: Allowance for credit losses (35.22) (35.22)
Total 6,776.27 5,612.03
Note-1: Outstanding for following periods from the date of transaction as on 31.03.2024
Less than 6 6 Month
Parti - -
articulars Monith i Yaar 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 5,561.54 70.18 14.94 - 0.59 5,647.25
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered doubtful
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful
Total 5,561.54 70.18 14.94 - 0.59 5,647.25
Note-2: Outstanding for following periods from the date of transaction as on 31.03.2025
Less than 6 6 Month
i - - M 3 Total
Particulars Month 1 Yaar 1-2 years 2-3 years ore than 3 years ota
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 6,433.35 355.33 10.79 12.01 - 6,811.49
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered doubtful
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful
Total 6,433.35 355.33 10.79 12.01 - 6,811.49
Note - 4 : Cash and Cash Equivalents
= Year Ended Year Ended March
Particulars March 31, 2025 31,2024
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash in Hand 1.38 0.01
Bank balance
- In Current Account - -
- Cheque in hand - -
Total 1.38 0.01
Note - 7 : Other Bank Balances
Year Ended Year Ended March
Particutars March 31, 2025 31,2024
- In Fixed Deposit Account for a maturity of less than or equal
to twelve months (Bank having the Lien on FDR) - -
- Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposit - -
Total . %
Note - 5 : Other financial assets
Year Ended Year Ended March
Particulars March 31, 2025 31,2024
EMD/ Security deposit 31.11 32.05
Accrued Income 1,351.00 378.00
Total 1,382.11 410.05
Note No 6(a) : Current assets
Year Ended Year Ended March
Particulars March 31, 2025 31,2024
Loan and Advances to employee 4.56 2.89
Total "\ 4.56 2.89
Note No 6 : Current tax assets \ }
Year Ended Year Ended March
Particulars X March 31, 2025 31,2024
Tax Deducted at Source (Net off Provision) [/\ 413.83 302.55
Total 413.83 302.55
Note -7 : Other Current Assets
\ Year Ended Year Ended March
Particulars March 31, 2025 31,2024
Prepaid Expenses /i 74.12 49.38
Advance to Service Providers 4 e =
Balances with Govt. Authorities(ITC Credit net of Liability) 276.41 347.01
Others 11.87 13.21
Total 362.40 409.60
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TCI-CONCOR MULTIMODAL SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

8(a). Equity Share Capital

Authorised Number of Shares Equity share capital
2,00,00,000 (Previous Year 2,00,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each 200 2,000
200 2,000

Number of Shares Equity share capital

Issued and paid up capital at April 1, 2024 70 700
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
Balance at 31st March 2025 70 700

8(a)(i) Details of shares held by the shareholders holding more than 5%of the aggregate shares in the Company
Year Ended March 31, Year Ended March 31,

ey 2025 2024
Transport Corporation Of India Limited, the Holding Company* 35.7 35.7
(51%) (51%)
Container Corporation of India Limited, Joint Venture Partner* 34.3 34.3
(49%) (49%)
70 70

*Promoters of company

Note :

(i) The company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a per value of Rs 10 Each, holder of equity shares is entitled to one
vote per share.

(ii) In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the company in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(iii) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end as given above in Note No 8a
(iv) Shares in the entity held by its holding and Joint Venture Partner




TCI-CONCOR MULTIMODAL SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

8 (b). Other Equity

X figures in lacs

Reserves and Surplus

Items of other
comprehensive income

Particulars G | Retiingd Total
enera e
afne Actuarial Gain / (Loss)
reserve earnings

Balance at April 1, 2024 (5.82) 2,483.70 - 2,477.88
Balance at April 1, 2024 (5.82) 2,483.70 - 2,477.88
Balance at April 1, 2024 (5.82) 2,483.70 - 2,477.88
Profit for the year - 740.76 - 740.76
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of

income tax

Total comprehensive income for the year (5.82) 3,224.46 - 3,218.64
Dividend paid during the year - (119.00) - (119.00)
Balance at March 31, 2025 (5.82) 3,105.46 - 3,099.64

The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. There is no policy
of regular transfer. As the general reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other
comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.

The Company declared final dividend of Rs.1.80 (PY Rs. 1.70) per equity share during the year




TCI-CONCOR MULTIMODAL SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
> . NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note-9 : Financial liabilities (Non Current Liabilities)

X figures in lacs

Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2025 Year Ended March 31, 2024
1 Secured-Term Loan From Axis bank - =
2 Secured-Term Loan From Kotak Bank 395.03 536.08
3[Secured-Term Loan From HDFC Bank 95.20 149.70
4 Secured-Term Loan From ICICI BANK 179.40
Total 669.63 685.78
| 9.1 Details of Indian Rupee Loan are as Under:
| s. NO. Naiffia 6f the batik Year Ended March 31, 2025 Year Ended March 31, 2024
| Non-Current Currrent Non-Current Currrent
| 1 AXIS BANK - - - =
| 2 KOTAK BANK 395.03 139.39 536.08 126.92
3 HDFC bank Limited 95.20 54.50 149.70 50.52
4 ICICI BANK 179.40 55.20 - -
Total 669.63 249.09 . 685.78 177.44
9.2 LOAN PROCEEDS DURING YEAR
S. NO. Name of the bank Year Ended March 31, 2025
ICICI Bank 276.00
2 Opening loan balance 863.22
3 closing loan balance 918.72
Amount repaid During year 220.49

9.2A  Maturity Profile and Rate of interest of term loan

S. NO. Particulars Rate of Interest Repayment Shedule
1 kotak bank-TRUCK 8.25% Monthly EMI of Rs.3,49,850/- till 15 Nov 2028
2 |kotak bank-FLT 8.33% Monthly EMI of Rs.11,36,715/- till 25 AUG 2028
3 |HDFC bank limited 7.60% Monthly EMI of Rs.5,33,400/- till 5 Oct 2027
4 ICICI BANK LTD 8.90% Quarterly EMI Of Rs.13,80,000/- till 30 sept 2029




TCI-CONCOR MULTIMODAL SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note - 10: Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

X figures in lacs

- Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Deferred Tax Liabilities 52.30 31.07
Deferred Tax Assets - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities/Assets(Net) 52.30 31.07
Computation Of Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets)
Particulsiss Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
WDV As Per Companies Act As On 31.03.2025 1,001.94
WDV As Per income tax Act As On 31.03.2025 758.90 61.16 39.93
Carry forward Loss as per Income Tax (loss and depreciation) - = o
Provision for Doubtful Debt 35.22 (8.86) (8.86)

Total Deferred Liabilities/(Assets) 52.30 31.07
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets) 52.30 31.07
Movement during the year 21.23 19.59

During the year ,Net Increase in deferred tax Liabilities/(Assets) of Rs.21.23 Lakhs is being recognised in the statement of Profit and

Loss. Previous year recognised Rs.19.60 lakhs.
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y TCI-CONCOR MULTIMODAL SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note-11 : Short Term Borrowings

X figures in lacs

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
HDFC Bank (WCDL)-Secured against trade receivables 800.00 1,500.00
HDFC Bank-Cash Credit Secured against trade receivables 397.58 535.95
Current Maturity of Long term Loan 249.10 177.44
Total 1,446.68 2,213.39
Note -12 : Trade Payables
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
e T e e e o v e J_‘B_J 2,803.71 485.05
Others (Including Trip sheet liability and other Sundry creditors) 931.65 845.56
(refer Note:1&2 below for ageing)
Total 3,735.36 1,330.61
Note-1:Outstanding for following periods from the date of transaction as on 31-03-2025
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
MSME - - - - -
Others 3,735.36 3,735.36
Disputed dues —MSME - - - - -
Disputed dues — Others - - - -
Total 3,735.36 - - - 3,735.36
Note-2:0utstanding for following periods from the date of transaction as on 31.03.2024
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
MSME -
Others 1,330.61 1,330.61
Disputed dues —MSME
Disputed dues — Others 4
Total 1,330.61 - - 1,330.61
Note-13 : Provisions
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Employee benefits 35.59 29.13
Other payables 171.95 134.25
Total 207.54 163.38
Note-13 : Other Current Liabilities
. Year Ended Year Ended
Partlculsrs March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Withholding tax 31.34 29.38
Contract Liability (Net of Contract Assets) -
Interest accrued but not due o B
Total 31.34 29.38




TCI-CONCOR MULTIMODAL SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE

Note - 14 : Revenue from operations

X figures in lacs

Year Ended Year Ended March
ks s March 31, 2025 31, 2024
From Logistics Services 45,553.06 34,511.47
Total 45,553.06 34,511.47
Note - 15 : Other Income
Particalars Year Ended Year Ended March
March 31, 2025 31, 2024
Interest on Deposits with Banks & Others 10.32 21.82
Miscellaneous Income 0.05 26.28
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets - -
Total 10.37 48.10
Note : 16 Operating Expenses
Particidire Year Ended Year Ended March
March 31, 2025 31, 2024
Rail freight handling and other charges 43,008.10 32,436.38
Total 43,008.10 32,436.38
Note - 17 : Employee Benefits Expense
Particidate Year Ended Year Ended March
March 31, 2025 31, 2024
Salaries & Wages including bonus 671.12 594.07
Contribution to Provident and other Funds 53.32 47.39
Welfare Expenses 26.26 22,18
ESOP Expenses 35.45 31.31
Total 786.15 694.95
Note - 18 : Finance cost
Partfcilaie Year Ended Year Ended March
March 31, 2025 31, 2024
Interest on Short Term Borrowings- HDFC Bank 122.02 68.15
Bank Charges 14.03 7.66
Interest on Term Loan 77.29 44.44
Total 213.34 120.25
Note - 19: Other Expenses
Year Ended Year Ended March
FOE D~ March 31, 2025 31,2024
Rent 82.00 63.58
Travelling and Conveyance Expenses 128.46 98.90
Internet Expenses 8.90 5.35
Telephone Expenses 2,18 2.28
Printing & Stationery 4.01 3.76
Postage and Courier 5.47 4.45
Electricity Charges 4.38 4.20
Office Maintenance Expenses 11.03 10.20
Repair to Machinery (Trucks & Trailors) 100.02 96.28
Consultancy Charges including Internal Audit fees 9.43 8.96
Computer Maintenance 8.93 8.43
Statutory Audit Fees 1.95 1.95
Tax Audit fee 1.10 1.10
For Taxation & Certification matters 0.59 0.44
For Reimbursement of Audit Expenses 0.24 0.26
Bad Debt/Provision for Doubtful Debt - 3331
Loss on Exchange Difference - -
Loss on Sale/transfer of fixed assets - 0.58
Insurance 3.02 2.63
CSR Exp. 16.00 16.50
Misc. Expenses 17.83 11.21
Total P 4 405.54 374.37
” : P u\ 7/
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Note: 20 Other Notes on the Financial Statements

March,2025 comprise of the following:

X figures in lacs

1. As per the Indian Accounting Standard 12 (IND AS-12) on “Accounting for Taxes on Income”, as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Net Deferred Tax Assets as at 31st

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(a) |Deferred Tax Liability
Related to Depreciation 61.16 39.93
Total 61.16 39.93
(b) |Deferred Tax Assets
Provision for doubtful debt (8.86) (8.86)
Related to Depreciation - -
Total (8.86) (8.86)
Net Deferred Tax (Liabilities)/Assets 52.30 31.07
2. Earnings per share (EPS) disclosure as per the Indian Accounting Standard-33 (IND AS-33) on “Earning per share as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs:
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1) |Net Profit/(Loss) available for equity Share holders 740.76 622.42
(Numerator used for calculation)
(1) |Weighted average number of equity Shares 70.00 70.00
(Denominator for Calculating EPS)
(I11) |Basic Earnings Per Share 10.58 8.89
(IV) |Diluted Earnings per share 10.58 8.89
(V) [Nominal Value per Equity Share 10.00 10.00
3. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments:
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

i) |Contingent Liabilities
a. Against Performanace Bank Guarantees given to customer of Rs./- (PY Rs./-)
ii) _|Capital Commitments (net of advance)

4. Related Party Disclosures:

defined in the IND AS are given below:

As per the Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS-24) on “Related Party Disclosures” as notified by The Minitery of Corporate of Affairs, the disclosures of transactions with the related party as

Related Entities:

= . - Year Ended Year Ended
4.1 |The Company is Controlled By The Following Entity Control Type March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Name ' &
. " Joint Venture Partner -
Transport Corporation Of India Ltd and Holding Company 51% 51%
Container Corporation Of India Ltd Joint Venture Partner 49% 49%
Joint Venture Partner of
CMA-CGM Logistic Park (Dadri) Pvt Ltd Container Corporation
of India
Transystem Logistics International Private Limited Other Related party
Joint Venture Partner of
Star Track Terminals Pvt Ltd Container Corporation
of India
TCI Chemlog Private Limited Other Related party
Joint Venture Partner of
All Cargo Logistics Pvt Ltd Container Corporation
of India
TCl Foundation Other Related party
TCl Developers Ltd Other Related party
TCl Bangladesh Ltd Fellow Subsidiary
Joint Venture Partner of
SIDCUL Concor Infra Co Ltd Container Corporation
of India
Key B P |
Mr Ajit Singh CEO
Ms Safali Gupta Company Secretary
4.2 |Keym p G £ Nature of Expesnes Year Ended Year Ended
) March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Ajit Singh Remuneration 172.89 148.86
Ms Safali Gupta Remuneration 9.25 ‘ 7.89
Total 182.14 156.75




4.3 |Transactions With Related Parties YearEnced Year Endec
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Logistic Services (Income)
Transport Corporation Of India Ltd 563.05 80.52
Transystem Logistics International Private Limited - -
Container Corporation Of India Ltd 1,787.04 1,077.68
TCI Chemlog Private Limited 391.30 -
Logistic Service (Expense-Rail Freight, Lorry Hire, Sea Freight) - -
Transport Corporation Of India Ltd 128.65 160.05
Container Corporation Of India Ltd 34,337.26 25,608.12
TCl Bangladesh Ltd % 5
CMA-CGM Logistic Park (Dadri) Pvt Ltd
All Cargo Logistics Pvt Ltd
SIDCUL Concor Infra Co Ltd
Employee Cost
Transport Corporation Of India Ltd ) =
Container Corporation Of India Ltd 58.75 54.68
Business Support Service- Transport Corporation Of India Ltd 20.57 22.58
Rent Paid A -
Transport Corporation Of India Ltd 2.40 2.40
TCI Developer Ltd 1.20 1.20
Container Corporation Of India Ltd 3.68 15.67
Electricity - -
Container Corporation Of India Ltd 0.75 0.76
Computer Maintenance - -
Computer Maintenance-Transport Corporation Of India Ltd 4.60 4.60
Other Transactions - -
-Dividends Paid - -
Transport Corporation Of India Ltd 60.69 53.55
Container Corporation Of India Ltd 58.31 51.45
CSR Exp.(Contribution) - =
TCl Foundation Ltd 16.00 16.50
Year Ended Year Ended
4.4 |The Following Balances Were Outstanding At the end of the Reporting Period March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade Payable
Container Corporation Of India Ltd 2,803.71 485.05
Container Corporation Of India Ltd-Employee Cost - -
Transport Corporation Of India Ltd 0.98 38.49
TCl Bangladesh Ltd - -
Trade Receivable - s
Container Corporation Of India Ltd 17171 229.65
Transport Corporation Of India Ltd 31.96 81.65
TCI CHEMLOG PRIVATE LIMITED 163.78 =
Security Deposit/EMD-Container Corporation Of India Ltd 2.58 2.58
Others Receivable from Container Corporation of India Ltd
5. Payments to Auditors Excluding GST
$:No. |Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1 |Statutory Audit Fees 1.95 1.95
2 |Tax audit Fees 110 110
3 |Taxation & Certification fees 0.60 0.44
4 |Reimbursement of Expenses 0.24 0.26
Total 3.89 3.75

6. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
a) Defined Contribution Plan
Provident Fund

The contributions to the Provident Fund are made to a Government administered Provident Fund through the respective Parent Company(s) from whom the employees has been taken on

deputation and there are no further obligations beyond making such contribution. All Provident Fund Contribution are considered as Defined Contribution Plan.

Employees State Insurance Scheme

The contributions to the Employees State Insurance Scheme are made to Employee State Insurance Corporation through the respective Parent Company(s) from whom the employees have
been taken on deputation and there are no further obligations beyond making such contribution. All Employees State Insurance Contributions made to Employees State Insurance

Corporation are considered as defined contribution plan.

b)Defined Benefit Plan
Gratuity

Respective Parent Company(s) have created their own Gratuity Fund including for the Employees sent on deputation to this Company. The liability for the Defined Benefit Plan is provided

on the basis of the Statement given by their respective Parent Company(s).




c) A rec as Exp
i) Defined Contribution Plan

ii) Defined Benefit Plan

Gratuity cost amounting to Rs 13.99 lakhs. (previous year Rs.12.27 lakhs ) is recognized as an expense and included in Note No.17 under Salaries and Bonus.

Employer’s contributions to Provident Fund amounting to Rs.22.39 Lakhs- (previous year Rs. to Rs. 18.80 lakhs) and Employer’s contribution to Employees State Insurance Scheme
amounting to Rs.2.66 lakhs (previous year Rs.3.08 lakhs ) are recognized as an expense and included in Note No. 17 under Contribution to Provident and Other Funds.

d) The amounts recognized in the Company’s Financial Statements as at the year end based on the statement given by the respective parent company are as under:-

Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet

Year Ended
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Gratuity Gratuity
Amounts recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 13.99 12.27

Transferred to Parent Company|Transferred to Parent Company

A/C A/C
Year Ended
Particulars Year Ended ) Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Leave E h Leave Encashment
Amounts recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 10.03 9.61

Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet (26.62) (21.48)

e) Company's employees have received the shares from the Group Holding Company “Transport Corporation of India Limited”, during the financial year under the ESOP Schemes and
same have accounted in the books of TCI Concor as per IND AS 102 under the head of cash settled basis. ESOP expenses debited in the books of the company of Rs. 35.45Lakhs (PY Rs.31.31
Lakhs) lakhs as per Ind AS 102 “ Share based Payment”.

7. Company does not have any lease for which the lease term(as defined in IND AS 116) exceeded 12 months of the acquisition date therefore, recognition of right of use assets and lease
liabilities for leases identified in accordance wih IND AS 116 is not required.

8. The principal business of the Company is to provide Integrated Logistics Services. All activities of the Company revolve around this main business. As such there are no separate
reportable segments as per Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS-108) on “Operating Segment”.

9. The Directors have waived off the sitting fee for attending the Board Meetings.

10. There are no Micro Small and Medium Enterprises to whom the company owes dues which were outstanding more than 45 days during the year and also as at Balance Sheet date.
This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro Medium and Small Enterprises Development Act 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on
the basis of information available with the company. This has been relied upon by the auditor.

11. Value of Import calculated on CIF (including reimbursement of exp) Nil/-(Previous Year NIL )
12. Expenditure in foreign currency NIL Previous Year NIL.
13. Earnings in foreign currency (Income From Logistics Services Rs Nil (PY Rs Nil/-)

14. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Particulars Amount(Rs.in lakhs)
(i) amount required to be spent by the company during the year, 15.33
(i) amount of expenditure incurred, 16.00

(ii)shortfall at the end of the year,
(iv)total of previous years shortfall,
(v)reason for shortfall,

(vi)nature of CSR activities,

15. Kay Financial Ratios

Promotion of nationally recognised sports

Year Ended

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current Ratio 1.65 1.80
Debt Equity Ratio 0.18 0.22
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 241 2.84
Return on Equity 0.19 0.20
Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio 7.36 7.56
Trade Payables Turnover Ratio 16.98 25.40
Net Capital Turnover Ratio 12.95 11.52
Net Profit Ratio 0.02 0.02
Return on Capital Employed 0.20 0.16

opinion of the management would not be material.

17. In the opinion of the management, the

of the assets on realization in the ordinary course of business will not be less than the value at whiHt! e?"ére stated.

16. Balances of some of the customers/suppliers/receivable/payables and deposits with others are subject to confirmation/reconciliation and consequential adjustment, if any, which in the




18.Undisclosed Income-The Company does not have any transaction not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961). Further, there was no previously unrecorded income
and no additional assets were required to be recorded in the books of account during the year.

19.Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency-The Company has neither traded nor invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year ended March 31, 2025. Further, the
Company has also not received any deposits or advances from any person for the purpose of trading or investing in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency.

20.WIP and Investment-I. The Company does not have any capital work in progress and Intangible assets under development.
Il. The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.

21.Registration of Charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)-The Company does not have any charges or satisfactions yet to be registered with the registrar of the
companies beyond the statutory period.

22.No Benami Property held-There are no proceedings which have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

23.No Wilful Defaulter-The Company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

24.Relationship with Struck off Companies-During the year, the Company does not have any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013.

25.Compliance with number of layers of companies-The Company has complied with the clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Restriction on number of
Layers) Rules, 2017.

26. The previous year figures have been re-grouped/re-arranged, wherever considered necessary to make them comparable with the current year figures.

As per our report of even date attached
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

mal Jain Vineet Agarwal -

Ghairman Vice Chairman
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